095  
w/app

6/21

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ROBERT BURATY,  
Petitioner,  
v.  
STATE OF FLORIDA,  
Respondent

Case No. 81864

DCA Case no. 92-2205

**FILED**  
SID J. WHITE  
MAY 27 1993  
CLERK, SUPREME COURT.  
By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

RICHARD L. JORANDBY  
Public Defender  
15th Judicial Circuit of Florida  
6th Floor, 421 Third Street  
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401  
(407) 355-7600

ERIC M. CUMFER,  
Assistant Public Defender

Attorney for Robert Buraty

**PRELIMINARY STATEMENT**

The Petitioner was the Defendant in the Circuit Court, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County and the Appellant before the District Court of Appeal, Fourth District. The Respondent was the Plaintiff in circuit court and Appellee in district court. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as Mr. Buraty and the State.

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On June 19, 1992, the State charged Mr. Buraty by information with the offense of solicitation to deliver cocaine on June 5, 1992. At arraignment, the State agreed that the crack cocaine used in this case had been manufactured by the Broward County Sheriff's Office. The court agreed it would permit a nolo contendere plea so that Mr. Buraty could appeal the denial of a motion to dismiss the charge because the cocaine had been illegally manufactured by the Sheriff. On July 6, 1992, Mr. Buraty then pled to the charge of solicitation to deliver cocaine, reserving his right to appeal. The court withheld adjudication and placed Mr. Buraty on a drug probation for one year.

Notice of appeal to the Fourth District was filed July 22, 1992. On July 26, 1992, the circuit court filed a written order denying the motion to dismiss nunc pro tunc to July 6. An amended notice of appeal was filed August 12, 1992.

Mr. Buraty argued on appeal that the use of manufactured cocaine in this case violated the due process of law. On March 31, 1993, the Fourth District affirmed. Its entire opinion read "Affirmed on authority of Metcalf v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D381 (Fla. 4th DCA Jan. 27, 1993)." Buraty v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D 864 (Fla. 4th DCA March 31, 1993). On April 12, 1992, Mr. Buraty filed a Motion for Clarification or to Certify a Question of Great Public Importance. The Fourth District denied this order on April 28, 1993.

Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of the Florida  
Supreme Court was filed with the Fourth District on May 26, 1993.

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Mr. Buraty argued on appeal that the charge of solicitation to deliver should have been dismissed because the police manufactured the cocaine in question which Mr. Buraty bought. The Fourth District issued a summary affirmance, citing to Metcalf v. State, 614 So. 2d 548 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993), pet. for review pending (Fla.S.Ct. 81,612)(copy in Appendix).

This Court has jurisdiction because the citation to Metcalf shows that the Fourth District was explicitly deciding the bounds of the due process of law as guaranteed by the Florida and Federal Constitution. Review is pending in Metcalf and so this Court's decision in Metcalf, if it accepts review, could conflict with the Fourth District's decision below. Also, since this Court is reviewing the same question of law in Williams v. State, 593 So. 2d 1064 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992)(Fla.Sup.Ct. 79,507), this Court has jurisdiction since the decision in Williams may conflict with the Fourth District's decision.

## ARGUMENT

THE AFFIRMANCE OF PETITIONER'S CONVICTION FOR SOLICITATION TO DELIVER COCAINE WHEN THE COCAINE IS MANUFACTURED BY THE POLICE, CONSTRUES THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE FLORIDA AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS AND REQUIRES THIS COURT'S REVIEW.

The Fourth District in a "citation PCA," has implicated the the due process of law as guaranteed by Article I, §9 of the Florida Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment to the Federal. It concerns a point of constitutional law presently pending before this Court and so requires this Court's review. This Court has jurisdiction because the Fourth District has construed these provisions of the Florida and Federal constitutions and concerns an issue of law in a case which may be in conflict with the district court decision when this Court issues its decision. Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const.

In a citation PCA, jurisdiction is established by reference to the cited case. Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981). The cited case is Metcalf v. State, 614 So. 2d 548 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993), pet. for review pending (Fla.S.Ct. 81,612) (copy in Appendix). If this Court accepts Metcalf for review and rules on it, it should also accept this case pursuant to the rule of Jollie. See Taylor v. State, 601 So. 2d 540, 541 (Fla. 1992).

Even should this Court deny review in Metcalf, it should still accept review in this case because this Court is deciding the same issue in Williams v. State, 593 So. 2d 1064 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992) (Fla.Sup.Ct. 79,507). Petitioner acknowledges that the instant case presents this Court with a jurisdictional twist because

Metcalf itself is not the case in which the issue is pending. However, Metcalf, in holding that a conviction for solicitation of an undercover police officer to deliver cocaine manufactured by the police was not a due process violation, distinguished Kelly v. State, 593 So. 2d 1060 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992) (copy in Appendix), which had held due process was violated for convicting one of purchasing cocaine when the police manufacture it. This Court denied review of Kelly. Kelly v. State, 599 So. 2d 1280 (Fla. 1992). However, it accepted review of the Kelly issue in Williams; thus, the Kelly/Metcalf issue is now pending before this Court. Should this Court rule in Williams that the deterrence of police misconduct requires drug charges which arose as a foreseeable result of that misconduct to be dismissed, the ruling of the Fourth District in this case will conflict with this Court's Williams decision.

To deny review because the Fourth District cited Metcalf instead of Williams would be a hypertechnical application of the citation PCA rule, which otherwise establishes this Court's jurisdiction over the instant case. In Jollie this Court recognized that the "randomness of the District Court's processing" should not control a party's right to Supreme Court review. 405 So. 2d at 421. This important issue is affecting numerous cases.<sup>1</sup>

---

<sup>1</sup> Besides the instant case and Metcalf, some other Fourth District cases which have affirmed on authority of Metcalf are Gordon v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D470 (Fla. 4th DCA Jan. 27, 1993); Lacy v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D520 (Feb. 17, 1993), pet. review pending (Fla.S.Ct. 81,615); Baker v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D432 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 3, 1993), pet. review pending (Fla.S.Ct. 81,614); Styles v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D865 (Fla. 4th DCA March

If this Court does not review Metcalf and this case, it will, before the fact, gut any decision by this Court in Williams. This is because Metcalf authorizes the state to dodge Kelly by simply filing the lesser charge of solicitation any time an arrest is made for purchase of police-manufactured cocaine.

This Court must accept jurisdiction in the instant case in order to fully consider the propriety of the police selling crack cocaine which they themselves have produced. This case illustrates the futility of stopping police misconduct by refusing only to permit convictions for purchase of cocaine but allowing solicitation to deliver charges for that same cocaine to stand: the transaction at issue here occurred in June, several months after the Fourth District denounced manufacture of cocaine as illegal in its January 3, 1993 decision in Kelly. The police in Broward continue their felonious activities and will do so unless stopped by the courts.

In Smith v. State, 598 So. 2d 1063, 1065 (Fla. 1992), this Court ruled that the equal protection of the laws and fair treatment of litigants requires that once the law is applied to one person on appeal, it must be applied to all those whose appeals are then pending. That same principle of equal treatment should apply as well to litigants who are seeking review of related issues before this court. It would be unfair to grant review to one litigant while denying that review to another simply because the

---

31, 1993); Lane v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D470 (Jan. 27, 1993); Levine v. State, 18 Fla.L. Weekly D432 (Feb. 3, 1993).

case cited by a district court as authoritative was not accepted for review by this Court but another case with the identical issue was considered. It is this principle of fairness - although not then connected to the equal protection of the laws - which underlay this Court's direction in Jollie that the district courts should develop a process so that multiple cases with the same issues could all be addressed by this Court.

To resolve fully this problem, we further suggest that the district courts devise one or more methods to distinguish a contemporaneous or companion case - for example, with distinguishing citation signals or by certifying that an identical point is at issue in the cited case [footnote omitted] - from cases which offer a mere counsel notification citation. We have no doubt that district court judges can produce one or more methodologies to preserve the review strictures of the 1980 amendment on the one hand, while on the other eliminating the possible injustice inherent in foreclosing review to some of several equally situated litigants.