By-Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 81,864

ROBERT BURATY,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

## RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

**ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH** 

Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

SARAH B. MAYER

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 367893 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401-2299 Telephone: (407) 688-7759

Counsel for Respondent

#

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
THE DECISION BELOW DOES NOT EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE THE STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONS AND THIS COURT SHOULD DENY PETITIONER'S REQUEST FOR REVIEW.
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE7

## TABLE OF CITATIONS

# CASES

.

.

•

.

ъ

<u>Jollie v. State,</u> 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981)		•	•		. 4,	5						
<u>Kelly v. State,</u> 593 So. 2d 1060 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992)	•	•	•			5						
Metcalf v. State, 18 Fla. L. Weekly D427												
(Fla. 4th DCA Jan. 27, 1993) Ogle v. Pepin,	•	٠	•	•	2, 4,	6						
273 So. 2d 391 (Fla. 1973)		•	•	•	•	4						
School Board of Pinellas County v. Dist	<u>rict</u>											
<u>Court of Appeal</u> , 467 So. 2d 985 (Fla. 1985)	•	-		•	•	4						
<u>State v. Johnson</u> , 561 So.2d 1321 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990) .	•		•	•		5						
<u>Williams v. State,</u> 593 So. 2d 1064 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992)	•	•	•	•	•	5						

# OTHER AUTHORITY

Fla.	R.	App.	P.	9.030(a	l) (2)	) (A)	(i	i)	•	•	•	•		•	4
------	----	------	----	---------	--------	-------	----	----	---	---	---	---	--	---	---

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Petitioner was the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in a criminal prosecution from the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County. The Respondent, State of Florida, was the Appellee and the prosecution, respectively, in the lower courts. In this Brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The symbol "PA" will be used to refer to Petitioner's Appendix, which is a conformed copy of the District Court's opinion.

All emphasis has been added by Respondent unless otherwise indicated.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The only facts relevant to a determination of this Court's jurisdiction pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) are those set out in the opinion sought to be reviewed. That opinion simply states:

This cause is affirmed on the authority of <u>Metcalf v.</u> <u>State</u>, No. 92-0885 (Fla. 4th DCA Jan. 27, 1993).

(PA 1). Respondent takes exception to the extent that Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts refers to record materials outside the four corners of the district court opinion. Furthermore, Petitioner has omitted the following pertinent facts:

Appellant entered into a written plea agreement admitting there was a factual basis for the charge of solicitation (R. 11). Adjudication of guilt was withheld (R. 11, 14).

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly construe the State or Federal Constitutions. Thus, no basis lies for this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION BELOW DOES NOT EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE THE STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONS AND THIS COURT SHOULD DENY PETITIONER'S REQUEST FOR REVIEW.

Petitioner maintains that the Fourth District's decision below involves an interpretation of the Due Process clauses of the Florida and United States Constitutions. Respondent acknowledges that the <u>Metcalf</u> decision cited in the Fourth District's opinion makes reference to due process. However, the Fourth District did not in any manner <u>construe</u> the Constitution in the instant case. Thus, this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

It is axiomatic that in order to establish this Court's conflict jurisdiction, or to establish jurisdiction on the basis that a district court opinion affects a class of constitutional officers, the basis for the discretionary review must appear on the face of the district court opinion. <u>See School Board of Pinellas</u> <u>County v. District Court of Appeal</u>, 467 So. 2d 985 (Fla. 1985). This requirement of expression on the face of the opinion extends to constitutional construction as well.

In order to <u>expressly</u> construe a provision of the federal or state constitutions for the purpose of invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), a district court's decision must explicitly "explain, define or otherwise eliminate existing doubts arising form the language or terms of the constitutional provision." <u>Ogle v. Pepin</u>, 273 So. 2d 391, 393 (Fla. 1973) (quoting <u>Armstrong v. City of Tampa</u>, 106 So.

2d 407, 409 (Fla. 1958)). In the case at bar, neither the Florida Constitution nor the United States Constitution was construed within the meaning of the above language. This is particularly true since the District Court's decision below merely relied upon <u>Metcalf</u>, another case in which due process was mentioned but not construed.

In the instant case, Petitioner was charged with solicitation to deliver cocaine within 1000 feet of a school. Petitioner relies upon Kelly v. State, 593 So. 2d 1060 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992), and Williams v. State, 593 So. 2d 1064 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992). He incorrectly argues that the instant case, if not reviewed, will gut any decision this Court may render in <u>Williams</u>. However, unlike Kelly and Williams, no substance was necessary to prove Petitioner's crime. State v. Johnson, 561 So.2d 1321, 1322 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990). Even if the act of "manufacturing" the crack cocaine constituted outrageous police conduct, that act has nothing to do with the crime of solicitation. Thus, the Fourth District's decision did not construe a constitutional provision and this Court's jurisdiction does not lie.

Petitioner's reliance upon <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 408 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), to establish jurisdiction is also questionable. Pursuant to <u>Jollie</u>, a district court's decision which cites as controlling authority a decision which is **either pending review in or has been reversed by this Court** will constitute prima facie express conflict over which this Court may exercise its discretionary jurisdiction. <u>Jollie</u>, 405 So. 2d at 420. Although

the defendant in <u>Metcalf v. State</u>, 18 Fla. L. Weekly D427 (Fla. 4th DCA Jan. 27, 1993), has sought to invoke this Court's jurisdiction, jurisdiction has not yet been accepted. In the event this Court declines to accept jurisdiction in <u>Metcalf</u>, there is no basis for this Court to exercise jurisdiction in the instant case.

#### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing argument and the authorities cited therein, Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction in the instant case.